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That he entered the service of the United States under the following
named officers and served as herin stated. I turned out as a volunteer under
Captain Henry Finch to serve every call of our officers to keep under the Torys
and other (outliers(?) in Johnson County & the adjacent area. Serve two months
and was dismissed by Capt. Finch. The month or year not recollected, but thinks
it was at the beginning of the war. Not long after I was drafted to serve a
three month tour as a private in Captain Henry Finch’s Company again. March to
Kingston on Miser River then a cross the river at Cox’s Ferry, then on towards
Trent River then on near Wilmington. after halting sometime we march through
Duplane County to Drowning Creek at the fair bluff. then march to Elizabethtown
on Cape Fear River then back to Smithfield in Johnson County where we first
marched from. Serve three months, got discharged and went home. In about twelve
months was drafted for another three months tour and mark (sic) under Capt.
John Trent under Col. Needham Bryan & marched across Tar River (before?)
Tarborough Town and through Green County & on near Edenton expecting to meet
British and Torys - and after s(t)aying there a few weeks marched up Roanoke
river to Halifax town and was stationed there about two weeks then on through
Nash County in pursuit of Torys..on into Wake County. Served three months and
was discharged by Capt. Trent..the year not recollected. Some four or five
months after this I with a number of others was called on by Col. John Smith of
Johson (sic) County to guard a force of Brittish (sic) prisoners about one
hundred thirty in number that was sent to Smithfield to be guarded till they
could be exchanged. I served as gard (sic) two months I was discharged by order
of Col. Smith. He remembers being with Gen. Greens army in his rout (sic)
toward Wilmington but did not remain long with Gen. Green. He also remembers
being mustered by Adjutant Childers while with Gen. Green’s army. The year not
recollected.

Not Tong after I was discharged from guarding the Brittish prisoners new
orders came for some eighteen months men to be raised. I for one turned out a
volunteer and when orders came to march I sent my Servin (servant?) in my
place. I was discharged.

I have no papers to prove what year but it was near the end of the war as
well as recollected. Nothin I do not have any papers nor do I no of any person
now Tiving by whom I could prove my services. He hereby relinquishess every
claim whatever to any pension or annuity except the present and declare his
name is not on any pension role of the agency of any state.

Sworn and subscribed before me th day and year above. James Holliman
(Signature) James Gordon, Witness.

RESPONSES TO MANDATORY QUESTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH PENSION APPLICATION:

1. Where and in what year were you born? In Johnson County N. Carolina
May 25, 1750.

2. Have you any record of your age and if so where is it kept? Yes in a
family Bible kept by my father of his childrens ages.

3. Where were you living when you were called into service and where have
you Tived since the revolutionary war and where do you 1ive now? I lived in
Johnson County N. Carolina when called into service and continued to live there
until 1793. I move to Lancaster District South Carolina & near the N carolina
line where I have lived ever since.

4. How were you called into service. Were you drafted? Did you volunteer
or were you a substitute, and if so for whom? A volunteer and drafted. I served
two three month terms a drafted soldier and two two month terms a volunteer and
sent my servant in the eighteen month tour.
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5. State the names of some of the regular officers who were with the
troops when you served. Such Continental and Militia Regiments as you can
recollect and the general circumstances of your service. Gen. Green, Col.
Needham Bryan, Adjutant Childers, Captain Henry Finch, Capt. John Trent and
Col. Smith They were militia officers living in Johnson County at the time
except Gen. Green and he was a Continental.

6. Did you receive a discharge from the service and if so by whom was it
given and what became of it? I do not remember receiving a written discharge
from any officers but mostly think I did but what has become of it I do not
know at this time.

7. State persons to whom you are known in your present neighborhood who
can testify to you reputation for verasity and their belief of your service as
a soldier of the revolution? Jesse Lewellen and Joshua Walters.

We Jesse Lewellen, Clergyman, residing in the same county and state, and
Joshua Walters residing in the same hereby certify that we are well acquainted
with James Holliman the applicant who has subscribed and sworn to the above
declaration that we believe him to be of the age therein stated. that he is
reputable and believed in the neighborhood where he resides to have been a
soldier of the revolution and that we concur in that opinion. Subscribed and
sworn the day and month aforesaid. James Gordon ( Signature) Jesse Lewellen
(Signature) Joshua Walters (Signature)

Unfortunately, the will and probate records of Lancaster County were
burned during the Civil War.

On 11 Nov 1854 Sarah (X) Holliman and Elizabeth (+) Parker petitioned the
S. C. Legislature for any balance due their father James Holliman under his
state pension, stating that they are his only surviving children and that he
died 8 May 1836. Their claim was disallowed since he had never filed for a
pension from S. C. (S. C. Audited Accounts of Revolutionary War Claims #3696C,
v. 72 p. 499 S. C. Archives, Columbia, S. C.*).

He married® Elizabeth Unknown surname®, before 1775 (?), in Johnson Co.,
NC. Born, circa 1752 (?), in Johnston Co., NC. Children:

i. Esther® Holliman®. Born, 1773 (?), in Johnston Co., NC. Died,
before 1854.

ii. Willis Holliman®. Born, 1775 (?), in Johnston Co., NC. Died,
before 1854.

iii. Thomas Holliman®. Born, circa 1777 (?), in Johnston Co., NC.
Died, before 1854.

iv. Samuel Holliman®. Born, circa 1779 (?), in Johnston Co., NC.
Died, before 1854.

v. James G. Holliman Jr.®. Born, 1780 (?), in Johnston Co., NC.
Died, 1804, in Anson Co., NC.

vi. Elizabeth Holliman®. Born, circa 1782 (?), in Johnston Co., NC.
Died, after 1854. She married Unknown Parker. She and her
sister Sarah filed a petition to the S. C. Legislature to
secure any unpaid Rev. War pension benefits due their father
James, who died 8 May 1836, and that they are the only
surviving children.

vii. Sarah Holliman®. Born, circa 1784 (?), in Johnston Co., NC.
Died, after 1854, in Lancaster Co., SC. Apparently a spinster,
as Sarah Holliman, she and her sister Elizabeth Parker
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petitioned the SC legislature 11 Nov. 1854 for any funds due
their father James under his S. C. Rev. War Pension. Their
claim was denied since James had never applied for a S. C.
pension. (Audited Account of Rev. War Claims, AA 3696C, v. 72,
p. 499, S. C. Archives, Columbia, SC*).

Cornelius Holliman.

Charles Holliman.

Warren Holliman <I>. Born, 1801, in Lancaster Co., SC. Died,
before 1854 (?), in Fayette Co., AL.

Little is known of this individual, and he may be the
Warren Holliman who had the following land grants in Fayette
County, AL:

U. S. Grant 18736 4 Mar 1836 for 40.05 ac. SE 1/4 NE 1/4
Sec. 29 T17S R12W. U. S. Grant 15463 18 Aug 1835 80.10 ac. E
1/2 SE 1/4 and 40.05 ac. SW 1/4 SE 1/2 and Grant 20498 13 Sep
1836 80.10 ac. W 1/2 SW 1/4 in Sec. 29 T17S R12W. Grant 17627 9
Jan 1836 40.174 ac. NW 1/4 NE 1/4 Sec 32 T17S R12W. (Fayette
Co., AL Plat Book, Fayette Co. Probate office). His sisters
claimed to be the only living heirs of James G. Holliman when
they applied for Lany unpaid pension of their father in 1854.
John B. Holliman®. Born, 1811 (?), in Salem Co., NC. Died, 14
Aug 1881. He marr1ed Susan Castle.
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3. Cornelius® Holliman (James Grantson, 2)>. Born, 1792 (?), in Johnston
Co., NC. Died in Fayette Co., AL.

While he is said to have died in 1820, there are several Fayette County,
AL., land grants to Cornelius Holliman, near those of brothers Charles and
Warren, at about the same time their grants were issued. U. S. Land Grant 17768
16 Jan 1836 40 ac. NE 1/4 NE 1/4 Sec. 29 T17S R12W; Grant # 17769 120 ac. 16
Jan 1836 E 1/2 SE 1/4 and SW 1/4 SE 1/4 T17S R12W; Grant 18735 40 ac 4 Mar 1836
NW 1/4 NE 1/4 Sec 29 TI7S RI12W.

He married Elizabeth Plyer, 1813 (?), in Anson Co., NC. Born, circa 1794
(?). Children:

i. Elijah A.® Holliman®. Born, circa 1815 (?), in Lancaster Co.,
SC. Died in AL.
He may be the Elijah Holliman who m. Jemima Yerby 24
Mar/30 Mar 1837 by John Dowdy, J. P. (Tusc. Co., AL MB 2, p.
109).
5 ii. Uriah Holliman.

iii. Dr. Joshua A. Holliman®. Born, 1824 (?), in Lancaster Co., SC.
Died in AR. Census: 1860 (?), in Fayette Co., AL. Occupation:
Physician.

In the 1860 census of Fayette Co., AL, p. 477. there is a
J. C. Holliman, age 36, physician and farmer land value $2000.
personalty value $2,000, born SC; wife Rachel, age 31, born
Miss., Four children born in Miss: James 19, Thornton, age 10,
William age 8, Frances, age 6. Fredonia age 6 and Cornelius age
6 months, were born in AL.

4, Charles® Holliman (James Grantson, 2)*. Born, 1795, in Anson Co., NC.
Died, before 1840, in Chapel Hill, Fayette Co., AL. Census: 1820, in Anson Co.,
NC. Census: 1830, in Anson Co., NC. Occupation: Planter.

In the 1820 census of Anson Co. NC, page 33, Charles Holimon has 1 male
0-10 (Asa), 1 male 16-18, 2 males 18-25, 1 female under 10 1 female 16-25. Two
of the males may be unmarried brothers. The female under 10 is not accounted
for.

In the 1830 census of Anson Co., NC, p. 100, Charles Hollimon has 1 male
under 5 (Peter), 1 male 5-10 (Joshua), 1 male 10-15 (Asa), 1 male 30-40, 1
female under 5 (Susannah), 1 female 5-10 (Milly Elizabeth), 1 female 20-30.

Charles was in Alabama by 1835 since his son Cornelius was born in
Alabama.

On 29 June 1836 Charles received a Federal grant of land # 19627 for 79.7
acres in Fayette Co., AL. W 1/2 SW 1/4 Sec. 28 T17S R12W (Fayette Co. AL. Plat
Book). While this is the only grant made to Charles, there is a mystery here,
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unless Charles actually patented several parcels of land in sections 20, 29,
and 32 in the names of his sons Cornelius and Warren, who were infants at the
time. While Charles had brothers Warren and Cornelijus, Cornelius was dead
before he came to Alabama, and I know of no other Cornelius or Warren exceept
the sons of Charles. The Warren who had land grants in Alabama prior to 1850
may have been his brother.

Charles was dead by 1840 when the census of Fayette County, p. 083, shows
Barbary Holliman as head of household. He lived in the Newtonville-Chapel Hill
area of Fayette county.

He married Barbary Walters®, daughter of Rev. John Walters and Catherine
Newton, 1819 (?), in Anson Co., NC. Born, 1797 (?), in Richmond Co., NC. Died,
after 1870, in Fayette Co., AL. Census: 1840, in Fayette Co., AL. Census: 1850,
in Fayette Co., AL. Census: 1860, in Fayette Co., AL. Occupation: Farmer.

In the 1840 census of Fayette Co., Alabama, page 192, Barbary Holliman is
incorrectly listed as "V" Holliman. There is no other comparable listing, and
the entries are consistent with the 1830 census of Anson Co., NC for her
husband Charles, and the neighbors on the census are those in later censuses.
It lists 1 male 10-15, 1 male 15-20, 1 male 30-40, 1 female 10-15, 1 female
10-15, 1 female 30-40, 1 male 10-15, 1 male 15-20, 1 male 30-40 (possibly a
brother). She Tived near the Poes and Ashcrafts and Moses Walters, believed to
be her brother. He showed 2 males 20-30, 1 female 20-30, and 1 female under 5.

The 1850 census of Fayette county, Al., page 069, Shows Barbary Holliman,
age 58, F., Farmer, owning real estate valued at $200., born in NC,; The
following children all born in NC: Milly 25 F, Susanah 23 F, Jesse 20 M Farmer;
Warren 17 M farmer. The following born in Alabama: Cornelius 15 M; Elijah 11 M;
Aaron 9 M.

The 1850 Fayette Co., AL., agricultural census, p. 147, lists Barbary
Holliman, owns 45 acres improved land valued at $200 and 55 acres unimproved
land valued at $200. She had 3 horses, 2 milch cows, 2 oxen, 3 head of cattle,
14 sheep, 14 swine, and raised 14 bu. wheat, 500 bu. oats, 30 bales of cotton,
75 bu. sweet potatoes, and slaughtered $10.00 worth of livestock.

In the 1860 census, Fayette County AL, middle division, p. 506, dwelling
507, family 507: Her son Warren lived next door. Barbary is 63, F, House keep,
real estate value $160. Personal property $573. This shows the place of birth
of she and Susan as SC. Susan(nah) is 34, Aaron, still at home, is 19.

By 1870, Census of Fayette Co., Al. p. 485, Barbary is 74, F, again born
in NC, land $400. and personal property $100. Susannah is age 43 and still
single and at home.

The 1870 Agricultural Census of Fayette Co., AL T17 RI3W lists Barbary
Holliman, 2 improved acres and 38 unimproved valued at $25. She has no horses
or mules, 2 milk cows, 2 cattle, 2 swine. Value of livestock $50. She raised 80
b:.7:orn and 1/2 ton of hay. Total production $125. which ain’t bad for a girl
o :

Barbary was probably dead by 1880, not appearing in the census. Her
maiden daughter Susan is listed living with her brother Warren’s household in
that census.

FOR CONTINUATION OF THIS LINE SEE THE HOLLIMAN FAMILY Children:

i. Asa® Holliman. Born, 1820, in Anson Co., NC. Died in Duckhill,
MS.
ii. Joshua Holliman. Born, circa 1822, in Anson Co., NC.
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John Holliman®. Born, 1823, in Anson Co., NC. Died in In Civil
War. Military Sv in Civil War.
Milly Elizabeth Holliman®. Born, 1825, in Anson Co., NC. Died,
18 Dec 1878, in Brownsboro, TX.
Susanah Holliman. Born, 1827, in Anson Co., NC. Died in Fayette
Co., AL.

A maiden, she lived with the family of her brother Warren
in the 1870 Census.
Peter Holliman®. Born, 18 May 1829, in Anson Co., NC. Died in
Brownsville, TX. Military Sv in Civil War. He married® Harriet
Temple.
James Jesse Holliman®. Born, 1830, in Anson Co., NC. Died, 25
Dec 1853, in Fayette Co., AL. He married® Ada Sullivan®.
Warren C. Holliman.
Cornelius Holliman.
Elijah Holliman.
Aaron Holliman.
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5. Uriah® Holliman (Cornelius, 3)°. Born, 1818 (?), in Lancaster Co., SC.
Died, May 1862 (?), in Okolona Co., MS. Census: 1860, in Fayette Co., AL.
Occupation: Farmer.

According to the 1860 census of Fayette Co., AL., p. 474, Uriah Holliman,
age 42, Male, Farmer, Real Estate Value $1,000.00, Personal property value
$2,000.00, born in SC.; wife Mary, age 41, female, born in AL.; The children,
all born in Alabama, are: S. James, age 21 M; Sarah J. age 18 F; C. D., age 18,
M; J.%., male age 16; Elijah, M age 14;, Palestine, female age 12; Cornelius,
male age 10; Perie (Wm. Perry), male age 8; Martha, female age 6; Rebecca,
female age 4; Frances, female age 2.

He married Mary Lucas "Polly"”, daughter of Charles Daniel Lucas and Mary
Unknown Surname, 29 Aug 1836, in Tuscaloosa Co., AL®. Born, 2 Jan 1819 (?), in
SC. Died, 6 Jul 1913, in Newtonville, Fayette Co., AL. Census: 1860, in Fayette
Co., AL. Listed in the 1860 census of Fayette Co., Al., p. 474. Children:

i. Mary E.° Holliman®. Born, 12 Sep 1837, in Fayette Co., AL.
Died, circa 1841, in Fayette Co., AL.
10 ii. Lt. James Franklin Holliman.
iii. Sarah J. Holliman'®. Born, 1842, in Newtonville, Fayette Co.,
AL. Died in Gainsville, TX. Census: 1860, in Fayette Co., AL.
She married Charles Corprell <Corpelli?>. Shown as age 18 in
1860 census of Fayette Co., AL., p. 475.
iv. Charles Daniel Holliman. Born, 1842, in Newtonville, Fayette
Co., AL. Died, May 1862, in Civil War. Military Sv in Civil
War. Census: 1860, in Fayette Co., AL. Shown as age 18 on 1860
census of Fayette Co., AL., p.475.
11 v. John Thomas Holliman "Hico John".
vi. Elijah Holliman’'. Born, 1846, in Newtonville, Fayette Co., AL.
Died in Civil War. Military Sv in Civil War. Census: 1860, in
Fayette Co., AL.
He was listed as age 14 in 1860 census of Fayette Co.,
AL., p. 475.
vii. Nancy Palestine HollimanZ. Born, 7 Apr 1848, in Newtonville,
Fayette Co., AL. Died, 12 Dec 1923. Census: 1860, in Fayette
Co., AL. She married John Pinon. Shown as age 12 in 1860 census
of Fayette Co., AL., p. 475.
12 viii. Cornelius Holliman.
13 ix. William Perry Holliman "Pee".
14 X. Martha Ann Holliman.
xi. Rebecca Holliman®. Born, 1856, in Newtonville, Fayette Co., AL.
Died in Ardmore, OK. Census: 1860, in Fayette Co., AL. She
married*® John T. Holliman "Black Jack", 21 Dec 1874.
Listed on p. 475 of the 1860 census of Fayette Co., AL,
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age 3 with parehts.
15 xii. Frances Holliman.
16 xiii. Joshua Warren Holliman "Bud".

6. Warren C.* Holliman (Charles, 4)*“. Born, 7 Feb 1833, in Anson Co., NC.
Died, 4 Dec 1908, in Chapel Hill, Fayette Co., AL. Military Sv in Civil War.
Burial: 1908, in Chapel Hill Cem., Fayette Co., AL. Census: 1860, in Fayette
Co., AL. Census: 1870, in Fayette Co., AL. Occupation: Planter.

It appears that his father patented several tracts of land in Fayette
County for Warren and his brother Cornelius, who would have been infants at the
time. 18 Aug 1835 80.10 ac E 1/2 SE 1/4 and 40.05 ac SW 1/4 SE 1/4 Sec 29 T17S
R12W patent # 15463; 9 Jan 1836 40.1725 ac NW 1/4 NE 1/4 Sec 32 T17S RI2W grant
# 17627; 4 Apr 1836 40.05 ac SE 1/4 NE 1/4 Sec 29 T17 R12W grant # 18736; 13
Sept 1836 80.10 ac w 1/2 SW 1/4 Sec 29 T17S R12W grant # 20498 (Fayette County
Plat Book).

Warren is 17 and a farmer, still living with his mother in the 1850
census of Fayette County Alabama, p. 69. His father is dead, and his mother,
Barbary is 58.

On 26 Nov. 1858 Warren received a grant # 37103 for 234 acres, SE4 NE4
AND SW4 NE4 AND SE4 NW4 AND SW4 NW4 AND NW4 SE4 AND SE4 SW4 in Sec. 35 T17S
RI3W and # 36103 for 39 ac. SE1/4 SW 1/4 Sec. 36 T17S RI13W. (Fayette Co. Plat
Book). Cornelius and Warren seemed to always buy adjoining tracts.

Jan 1, 1859 Warren Holliman received Grant # 37210 for 80 ac. NW 1/4 NW
1/4 Sec 1. and NE 1/4 NE 1/4 Sec. 2 T18S R13W in Pickens Co. (U. S. Grant Book,
Pickens Co., AL).

The 1860 census of Fayette County, AL, Middle District, p. 506, dwelling
and family 508, shows Warren Holliman, age 28, a farmer with $800.00 worth of
land and $7,040 in personal property, born in SC. His wife Mary is 25, also
born in SC. The children, born in Alabama, are Sarah age 6, John age 4 and
Barbary Eliz. age 4, William, age 3, and Newton, age 1.

Warren was a Private in Co. B, 41st Alabama Infantry in the Civil War. He
and his brothers Elijah and Cornelius enlisted on April 30, 1862 for a term of
three years or the duration of the war. Cornelius was killed at Petersburg,
Va., but Warren and Elijah survived the war. They served under Lt. D. W.
Stokes, Captain J. C. Kirkland, and Col. Henry Talbert (also spelled Tailbird
and Tallbert) who was succeeded by Col. Martin L. Stansel.

The company Muster Rolls show Warren present until January 1863 when he
is noted absent - in hospital Tullahoma, TN, which was after the Battle of
Stones River at Murfreesboro, TN. Dec. 31, 1862 - Jan. 2, 1863. The May-June
Roster notes that he deserted August 3, 1863, but the June-July roster shows he
was really in the hospital at Knoxville, TN. The Roster for July-Oct 1863 shows
him present. In Jan-Feb 1864 he is again absent-wounded. This would be
following the Chattanooga Battles from Sept. - Nov. 1863. He was admitted
(wounded) to the General Hospital, Howards Grove, Richmond, VA. on August 18,
1864, and was given a furlough on Nov. 3, 1864.

The 41st Alabama Infantry Regiment, 1250 strong, was organized on May 16,
1862, trained at the University in Tuscaloosa until July 2, 1862 they were
ordered to Chattanooga and marched to Selma where they embarked on the steam
boat Samuel Dockett, which sank after hitting a tree, fought through
Mississippi, Tennessee, Georgia, and Virginia before surrendering under Gen.
Robert E. Lee at Appomatox Court House, VA, on April 9, 1865. Colonel Henry
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Talbird was the first commander, and was succeeded by the valiant and brave
Col. Martin L. Stansel.

Stationed first at Chattanooga, near Grahams, from March 22-June 30, 1862
and Middle Tennessee (Murfreesboro June 30-July 31, 1862; Manchester, TN Nov.
1862-Apr. 1863) for several months, primarily doing guard duty. In September
1862 they were transferred to the Army of Kentucky in General Hanson’s Kentucky
Brigade, then assigned to the Army of the Tennessee. Two of their finest
Tieutenants were killed and Col. Stansel wounded in the Battle of Murpreesboro
(Stone River) under General Braxton Bragg’s Army of the Tennessee, Lt. Gen.
William J. Hardee’s Corps, Major Gen. John Breckenridge’s First Division, and
Hanson-Wrights Brigade under Brig. Gen. R. W. Hanson, who was killed at Stone
River. On the left flank of Breckenridges line, the 41st Al. took and held a
small but vital hill (Wayne’s Hi1l) overlooking the river and held it
throughout the battle, fighting valiantly, then served as a rear guard during
the withdrawal, being outnumbered 70,000 to 35,000. Both sides suffered great
losses, with Breckenridge’s Division alone receiving 2,140 casualties. The 41st
Tost 18 killed and 89 wounded, a part of 198 lost by Hanson’s Brigade..

In May 1863 the Kentucky Brigade was assigned to General Helm and moved
to Tullahoma, TN, May 23, 1863, serving in Breckenridge’s Division until Nov.
1863, During May and June 1863 they were at Camp Hurricane, MS in relief of the
siege of Vicksburg 5/9 to 7/4/1863 and in the trenches at Jackson, Miss. during
July 1863 (1 killed). Part of company B was involved in a skirmish with the
enemy at Jackson, MS on July 11, and went from there to Morton.

The regiment rejoined the Army of the Tennessee on July 1, 1863 at Tyner
Station, TN, and immortalized itself at the Battle of Chicamauga Sept. 19-20,
1863, during an engagement that lasted from 8/16 - 9/22/1863 advancing over the
enemie’s fortified positions. Of 325 men in the brigade there were 189
casualties, including their Brigadier General Helm who was killed. Colonel
Stansel is quoted "At about 5 p.m.(Sunday the 20th) we (constituted) the center
battallion in the final charge upon the fortifications occupied by the enemy
when they were completely routed and driven back for miles" ("Confederate" p.
186). They marched to Chattanooga Sept. 23, and from Missionary Ridge to Tyner
Station 21 Oct. 1863, leaving there 10 November. There were a number of bloody
struggles and severe privations in the winter campaign in East Tennessee,
suffering many losses.

In November and Dec. 1863, they served under General Gracie’s Brigade
near Knoxville (21 Nov.-Dec. 4), Morristown, TN, and at Battle of Bean's
Station, (Dec.14) taking severe losses in the battles of East Tennessee until
April 1864 when they were sent to Virginia, serving at the Battle of Drewry’s
Bluff May 12-16, and at Dutch Gap and Hatcher’s Run. They took part in the
siege of Petersburg 16 June - 31 July 1864, where Maj. L. D. Hudgins was
killed; suffered greatly at Hatcher’s Run; losing Lt. Col. Trimmier at White
Oak Road. The unit was fighting bravely at Appamattox, and had repulsed the
enemy when the flag of truce ended the war. Of the 1454 on the rolls, about 270
members of the 41st were still standing. 130 had been killed, 370 had died of
disease and 135 were transferred or discharged.("Alabama" 650-1)(LaBree "
Confederatre" p. 134-146, 206-7, 258, 272-4, 307-19)

The 41st Alabama Infantry Regiment participated in the following battiles:
Murfreesboro, TN., (Dec. 31, 1862-Jan. 3, 1863); Tullahoma Campaign (June
1863); Jackson Seige (July 1863); Chicamauga (Aug. 16-Sept. 19-20, 1863) where
they served in Lt. Gen. D. H. Hill’s Corps, Brig. Gen. B. H. Helm’s Brigade
(HeTms was killed in that battle); Chattanooga Seige (Sept.-Nov. 1863);
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Knoxville Siege (Nov.14-30, 1863); Bean’s Station; Chester Station (May 10,
1864); Drewry’s Bluff May 12-16; Dutch Gap; Hatcher’s Run, White Oak Road;
Petersburg Siege (June 1864-April 1865); The Crater (July 30, 1864); Appomatox
Court House (April 9, 1865).("Confederate Armies" p. 111-2, "Confederates" p.
183-5).

It is said that Warren’s second wife, Louisa, was engaged as a nurse for
Mary, Warren’s first wife, and that Louisa poisoned Mary that she might have
Warren. At any rate, Warren lies between them forever in the Chapel Hill
Cemetary. The marriage bond was issued for W. Holliman and L. T. Howard 11
April 1896 with the ceremony at the home of Warren Holliman 12 April 1896 by
Rev. M. J. Abernathy, M. G.

Avis Holliman, his granddaughter, remembers that he would sit on the
front porch with her father, M. J. and tip his hat to her each time Felix
pulled her by him in their little wagon.

29 Apr. 1862 Warren purchased 20 acres for 20 dollars from his brother
Cornelius (Dower Malissa Ann) in the S 1/2 NW 1/4 of NW 1/4 Sec. 36 T17S R13W
(DB 12 p. 429 Fayette Co., AL.).

In 1870 Fayette Co., AL Census p. 485, W. Holeman is 37, a farmer, and
now that the civil war is over his land is only worth $808. and personal
property $800. This time he was born in NC, and Mary quit being born in SC in
favor of AL. Children are: S. J. (Sarah) age 16 F; J.T. (John) age 14 M; B. E.
(Barbary Elizabeth) age 14 F; W. J. (William) age 12 M; F.M, (Francis Marion)
is age 8 M; G. H. age 4 F, S.W. (Sidney Warren, know as Sid) is age 2 M; N. D.
Blakney lives with them. This is probably Newton D. Blakney, the son of Mary’s
brother William, who was killed in the Civil War.

The 1870 Agricultural Census of Fayette Co., AL T17 R13 Warren Holliman
owns 50 acres improved land, 370 unimproved, value $410. He had 2 horses, 1
asses and mules, 5 milch cows, 1 oxen, 4 cattle, 14 sheep, 12 swine,, vaiue of
Tivestock $500. He raised 40 bu. wheat, 300 of corn, 1 1/2 tons hay, 25 gal.
molasses, 2 bales cotton, 25 bu. peas and beans, 25# wool, 30 bu. sweet
potatoes, 300# butter, 50# honey. Value of Manufactures $100, and of animals
slaughtered $70. Total produce $800.

29 Nov. 1871 Missouri C. McGaha to Warren Holliman for $300 SE 1/4 of
NW1/4 Sec. 36 T17 AND N1/2 of NW1/4 Sec 36 T17 AND N1/2 of SW1.4 of NW1/4 Sec.
36 T 17, RI13W. Rec. 21 Dec. 1874 (Fayette Co., AL. DB 2 p. 319):

7 Aug 1873. Warren Holliman and Wife Mary Mortgage to Thomas Blakeney for
$160.00 payable 1 Apr. 1873 (18747). Secured by: W1/2 of SW1/4 Sec. 36 T 17
R13W and E1/2 of SE1/4 SEC 35, AND SE1/4 OF NW1/4 SEC 35, AND N1/2 OF NW1/4 SEC
35, AND SW1/4 OF NW1/4, AND NW1/4 OF SE14 AND S1/2 OF NE1/4, SEC 35. Also 2
mares and colts, yoke of oxen and waggon, 6 milk cows, present crops. Rec. 13
Aug., 1873. (DB 2 p. 138 Fayette Co., AL.).

15 Feb. 1878 Warren purchased from E. A. Baker 80 ac. for $250. E 1/2 of
SW 1/4 T17S R13W. (DB 15 p. 101 Fayette Co., AL)>

The 1880 Census of Fayette Co., AL. Hico Beat 7, Sup. Dist. 1, Enum. Dist
85, 9-85-25-1 lists Warren Holliman, Male, 47, Farmer born in NC with wife
Mary, female, 45, born in AL; Frank M. male age 18, Sousan (Susan) K. Female
age 14, Sidney W., Male age 12, Moses J., Male age 7, Sousan (Susan), age 53,
(who is Warren’s old maid sister).

The 1880 Agricultural Census of Fayette Co., AL T17 RI13W E. D. 85 p. 14
Tists Warren Holliman, who owned 75 improved and 445 unimproved acres valued
$851. He hired white labor for 36 weeks, paying $100. in wages. He owned 2
horses, 3 milch cows, 2 oxen, 8 cattle, 20 swine, and produced 2 calves and 4
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lambs.Value of livestock $275. Crops: 18 bu. wheat, 350 bu. corn, 2 bales
cotton, 4 1bs wool, 25 bu. sweet potatoes, 150# butter,, 20 chickens produced
40 doz. eggs. He had 40 peach trees, and cut 10 acres of wood.

18 June 1881 Warren and Mary his wife sold 81 ac. to J. T. Hughes for
$165. E 1/2 of SW 1/4 and 1 ac. in NE corner SW 1/4 SW 1/4 Sec. 36 T17S R13W
(DB 15 p. 97 Fayette Co., AL). On 5 Apr. 1883 Warren and Mary sold Coal and
Iron rights on various parcels to Geo. Pac. RR. (DB 15 p. 480 Fayette Co., AL).

Warren Holliman and Maria (?) Holliman to J. W. Holliman for $7.50 2 1/2
acres land 14 rods by 27 rods at SE corner of NW1/4 Sec. 36 T11 R13W. Recorded
15 Dec. 1894 (?).

On 5 Nov. 1898 Warren Holliman and J. E. Abernathy purchased for $900.00
100 acres in Sections 26, 25, and 36 T17S R13W from M. J. Abernathy. The
description indicates there is some sort of mill and mi1l pond involved. (DB 3
p. 415, Fayette Co., AL).

I have been unable to locate a 1900 census record.

He married, first, Mary Blakeney <Blakney> "Polly"'®, daughter of Thomas
Blakeney <Blakney> and Sarah Roberts, 1852, in Fayette Co., AL. Born, 6 Jan
1835, in Newtonville, Fayette Co., AL. Died, 8 Sep 1895, in Chapel Hill,
Fayette Co., AL. Burial in Chapel Hill Cem., Fayette Co., AL.

In the 1850 Census of Fayette Co., AL. Polly Blakeney is age 15, living
with her parents.

She is said to have been poisoned by her nurse who then married her
husband. In the will of her father, Tom Blakney, she received 1/9 of his
considerable estate "free from the interference or control of her husband".
That same phrase was used in all of his daughter’s legacies. However, Polly
died between Tom's death and the time his will was probated so her share was
divided among her children.

SEE THE WARREN C. HOLLIMAN FAMILY FOR THE CONTINUATION OF THIS LINE.
Children:

17 i. Sarah Jane® Holliman.

ii. John T. Holliman "Black Jack"®. Born, 1856, in Chapel Hill,
Fayette Co.é AL. Died in Ardmore, OK. Military Sv in Civil War.
He married®®, first, S. E. Corbit, 21 Nov 1867, in Fayette Co.,
AL. He married*®, second, Rebecca Holliman®, 21 Dec 1874.

It appears that he and Barberry were twins. In the 1860
census of Fayette Co., AL., John, age 4, and in the 1870
census, p. 485 he is listed as J. T. age 14, child of Warren
and Mary.

On 19 Nov. 1867 J. T. Holliman and Sarah E. Corbit
received a marriage bond and were married 21 Nov. 1867 at the
home of Jesse Corbit by S. P. Rowland, M. G. (MB 1 p. 136
Fayette Co, AL).

21 Dec. 1875 J. T. Holliman and Rebecca Holliman received
a marriage bond and were married Dec. 24 1875 by A. E. Foster
LD (MB 1 p. 467 Fayette Co., AL.)

John T. Holliman purchased 100 acres of land for $265. 12
Jan. 1887 from D. F. and Susan R. Poss E 1/2 SE 1/4 Sec. 23 and
20 ac. off W 1/2 W 1/2 of SW 1/4 Sec. 24 T12S R13W. (DB 10 p.
327-8 Fayette Co., AL.).

A marriage license was issued to J. T. Holliman and
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Hester Howard 17 Feb. 1896 with ceremony at G. W. Holliman’s 20
feb. 1896 by W. H. Brown, J. P. (MB B p. 214 Fayette Co., AL).
Named as an heir in petition to probate estate of his
grandfather Tom Blakeney, June 27, 1896, Fayette Co., AL.,
which states he resides in Texas.
He was known as a Strongman. Lived in Texas and Oklahoma.

18 iii. Barberry Elizabeth Holliman "Lizzie".

jv. William James Holliman®. Born, 1858, in Chapel Hill, Fayette
Co., AL. Died, 1920. He married, first, Eliza Unknown surname®,
before 1875, in Fayette Co., AL. He married'”, second, Sarah E.
Richardson, 17 Oct 1875, in Fayette Co., AL. He married, third,
V. L. Howard, 19 Feb 1893, in Fayette Co., AL. He married®,
fourth, Beulah K. Branyon, 20 Dec 1899, in Fayette Co., AL. He
married*®, fifth, Gertie Clanton.

In the 1860 census of Fayette Co., AL., p. 506, William,
age 3, and in 1870 census of Fayette Co. p. 485 W. J., age 12,
Tives with parents.

Marriage License issued J. W. Holliman and V. L. Howard
17 Feb. 1893, rites at J. M. Wilson’s 19 feb. 1893 by J. F.
Ashcraft, J. P. (MB B p. 31 Fayette Co., AL).

Marriage Bond issued 20 Dec. 1897 to J. W. and Bula K.
Branyon 20 Dec. 1897, ceremony at Nute Branyon’s 23 Dec. 1897
by W. H. Brown, J. P. (MB B p. 344 Fayette Co., AL.

Named as an heir of his grandfather Thomas Blakeney in
petition to probate June 27, 1896, Fayette Co., AL.

v. Newton Holliman®. Born, 1859, in Chapel Hill, Fayette Co., AL.
Died, 1860, in Chapel Hill, Fayette Co., AL. Burial in Chapel
Hil1l Cem., Fayette Co., AL.

In the 1860 census of Fayette Co., AL., Newton, age 1, is
living with parents.

vi. Francis Marion Holliman "Frank"®. Born, 1863, in Falette Co.,
AL. Died in nr Winfield, Marion Co., AL. He married*® Nancy J.
Henderson, 28 Jan 1885, in Fayette Co., AL.

The 1870 census of Fayette Co., AL, p. 485, Tlists Frank
M., age 8, living with his parents. The 1880 census of Fayette
Co., HICO beat 7., S. D. 1, E. D. 85 Frank M. age 18 lives with
parents.

F. M. Holliman and Nancy J. Henderson were issued a
marriage bond 26 Jan. 1885 and services were performed at the
home of John Henderson 29 Jan. 1885 by J. F. Ashcraft, J. P.

Named as an heir of his grandfather Thomas Blakeney in
petition for probate filed June 27, 1896, Fayette Co., AL. He
worked as a farmhand for his brother Moses for some time when
Amy was growing up.

19 vii. Sidney Warren Holliman "Sid".
20 viii. Susan Kizziah Holliman "Kizzie".

ix. G. H. Holliman®. Born, 1866, in Chapel Hill, Fayette Co., AL.
Died, before 1880, in Fayette Co., AL.

He appears to be a twin of Susan Kizziah. 1870 census of
Fayette Co., AL p. 485 he is age 4. Not named as an heir of
Thomas Blakeney June 27, 1896, which confirms that he died
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earlier. Not found on the 1880 Census of Fayette Co., AL.
21 X. Moses Jefferson Holliman "M. J.".
xi. ETlijah Holliman®. Born, circa 1874, in Chapel Hill, Fayette
Co., AL. Died, before 1896, in Fayette Co., AL. Burial in
Spring Hill Cem.**.

He was not listed as a child of Warren in the 1880 census
of Fayette Co., AL., and may have been dead by that time. Not
mentioned as an heir of Mary Polly Blakeney in the petition for
probate on the will of Thomas Blakeney June 27, 1896, Fayette
County, AL., indicating he had died some time before that.

He marriedé second, Mrs. Louisa F. Howard, 12 Apr 1896, in Chapel Hill,
Fayette Co., AL**. Born, 12 Feb 1848. Died, 22 Apr 1901, in Chapel Hill,
Fayette Co., AL. Burial in Chapel Hill Cem., Fayette Co., AL.

In 1869 Louisa F. Howard attended Wesley Chapel Methodist Sunday School.
The Ro11 Book indicates that she left to join the Baptists (Roll Book p. 13).

She apparently had been married before since Fayette County, AL.,
Marriage License Book B, p. 221 is for Warren Holliman to Mrs. L. T. Howard 12
April 1896 by W. H. Brown, Probate Judge, at home of Warren Holliman.

7: Cornelius® Holliman (Charles, 4)°. Born, 1835, in Anson Co., NC. Died,
1865 (?), in Civil War, Petersburg, VA. Military Sv in Civil War. Census: 1860,
in Fayette Co., AL. Occupation: Farmer.

The 1860 census of Fayette Co., AL., Middle Div., p. 506, family 509
lists_Cornelius Holliman, age 25 Male, a Farmer, owning land valued at $400.00
and personal property worth $260.00, born in NC, married to Malissa, age 20,
born in NC, with children (a1l born in Alabama), John, age 6, male; Jane, age 3
female, William, age 2 male. and Sarah, age 1 female. he lives near his mother
and his brothers, Warren and E1lijah.

He received Federal Land Grants as follows:

#36102 26 Mar. 1858 40 ac. SW 1/4 NW 1/4 Sec. 36 T17S RI3W.

#37102 26 Nov. 1858 39.04 ac NE 1/4 NE 1/4 and 39.04 ac NW 1/4 NE 1/4 and
39.04 AC NE 1/4 NW 1/4 and 39.04 ac NW 1/4 NW 1/4 Sec. 35 T17S RI3W.

On 29 Apr. 1862 he and wife Malissa Ann sold to brother Warren Holliman
20 ac. for $20. S 1/2 NW 1/4 NW 1/4 Sec. 36 T17S RI13W. (DB 12 p. 429 Fayette
Co., AL.

His Civil War Confederate Army records show that he enlisted as a Private
in Co. B, 41st Alabama Infantry regiment under Capt. J. C. Kirkland on April
30, 1862 in Fayette County, Alabama for 3 years or duration of war. Company
muster rolls show him present until that of May and June 1863 which states he
is "in hosp. Don’t know where." He shows on the Hospital Muster Rol11 for
Breckenridge’s Hospital, Marion, MS in July-August 1863, and the company Muster
Ro11 for July-Oct. 31 notes he is in hospital at Marion, MS. He is said to have
died in the Civil War in Petersburg, VA, where the siege lasted from June 1864
to April 1865. For the history of the 41st Alabama see the narrative for Warren
C. Holliman.

He married®® Malissa Ann Unknown surname®® in Fayette Co., AL. Born,
circa 1837 (??). Died in Fayette Co., AL. Children:
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i.  John® Holliman. Born, 1854. Census: 1860, in Fayette Co., AL.

He is shown on p. 506 1860 census of Fayette Co., AL, age 6.

ii. Jane Holliman. Born, 1857, in Fayette Co., AL. Census: 1860, in
Fayette Co., AL. She is listed in the 1860 census of Fayette
Co., AL, P. 506, age 3.

iii. William Holliman. Born, 1858, in Fayette Co., AL. Census: 1860,
in Fayette Co., AL. Listed as age 2 in 1860 census of Fayette
Co., AL, p.506.

iv. Sarah Holliman. Born, 1859, in Fayette Co., AL. Census: 1860,
in Fayette Co., AL. Shown as age 1 on the 1860 census of
Fayette Co., AL, p. 506.

8. Elijah® Holliman (Charles, 4)>. Born, 12 May 1839, in Fayette Co., AL.
Died, 11 May 1937, in Fayette Co., AL. Burial in Spring Hill Cem.>®.

Elijah Holliman has the following Federal Land Grants recorded in the
Fayette Co., Al. Plat Book:

#27717 80 ac. 1 Mar. 1858 N 1/2 SW 1/4 Sec. 18 T14 R13W.

#23370 180 ac. 1 Mar. 1858 E 1/2 NW 1/4 and W 1/2 NE 1/4 Sec. 18 T14S
R13W. (DB 13 p. 124-5 Fayette Co., AL).

The 1860 census of Fayette County, AL., Middle Div., National Archives,
Microcopy 653, Reel 9, page 505, dwelling 506, family 506, Elijah Holliman, age
21, a farmer with personal property valued at $150, has a wife Mary, age 24,
and a daughter Sarah, age 1. He lives next door to his mother, Barbary,

A veteran of the Civil War, he enlisted as a Private in Co. B, 41st
Alabama Infantry under Capt. J. C. Kirkland on April 30, 1862 for three years
or the duration of the war. Comapny muster rolls show him present until the one
for May-June 1863, which notes that he is "in Hospital. Don’t know where." He
is again present on muster rolls, and there is a Receipt for clothing issued
July 9, 1864, until he appears in the Register of the General Hospital, Howards
Grove, Richmond, VA, where he was admitted Aug. 22, 1864. He shows in the
Register of the Medical Directors Office at Richmond in Sept. 1864, and was
discharged and given a 60 day furlough on Nov. 3, 1864. Company Muster Rolls
for Jan-Feb 1865 show him absent-wounded. He appears on the Roll of Priscners
of War surrendered by Lt. Gen. R. Taylor, CSA to Maj. Gen. E. R. S. Canby, USA
May, 1865, paroled May 17, 1865 at Columbus, MS. For the history of the 41st
Alabama see the narrative on Warren C. Holliman.

He married®, first, Jemimah Yerby. Children:

i. Frances® Holliman®.
ii. Unknown Holliman®. Died in "Qut West".
iii. "Bud" Holliman®.
He married, second, Mary Unknown, circa 1858, in Fayette Co., AL.
Children:

iv. Sarah Holliman. Born, 1859, in Fayette Co., AL.
The 1860 census of Fayette Co., p. 505, Lists Elijah
Holliman, married to Mary, with a daughter Sarah, age 1.
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9. Aaron® Holliman (Charles, 4)®. Born, 1841, in Chapel Hill, Fayette Co.,
AL. Died in AR. Census: 1870, in Fayette Co., AL. Census: 1860, in Fayette Co.,
AL.

In the 1850 census of Fayette Co., AL., p. 506, he is age 19, living at
home with his mother Barbary and old maid sister Susan(nah).

The 1860 federal census of Fayette Co., Al., p. 485, family 80, Tist Aron
Holliman, 28 male, Farmer, land worth $120., and personal property worth $100.,

born in Alabama. His wife is S. A., age 23, born in MO, C.W. a male, age 3; M.
F., age 6 months, female.

He married S. A. Unknown surname®, circa 1866, in Fayette Co., AL. Born,
1836, in MO. Children:

i. C. W.® Holliman. Born, 1867, in Fayette Co., AL. Census: 1870,
in Fayette Co., AL. Shown as age 3 on the 1870 census of
Fayette Co., AL., p.485.

ii. M. F. Holliman. Born, 1869, in Fayette Co., AL. Census: 1870,

in Fayette Co., AL. Listed at age 1 on 1870 census of Fayette
Co., AL, p. 485.
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THE HOLLIMAN FAMILY 17 AUG 1996 : B

Prepared by: Walter Orien Holliman Jr. "Walt"

FIRST GENERATION

e i

i 1. Samuel* Holliman <?><H011yman, Holeman>', son of Unknowf Holliman and
annewn Woman. Born, 1707 (?), in Surry Co., Va. Died, 1789, in Dobbs Co., NC.

This ancestor has not been proved. From the Revo]ut1onary War Pension
Application of James Holliman we learn that he was born in Johnston County,
North Carolina May 25, 1750, enlisted there, and lived there until 1793. He
mentions his father, but does not name him. Most of the records of him are land
records, and they hint that Samuel could be the father, and it is known that
his property adjoined that of Samuel. Dr. Charles Holliman of Raleigh, NC, a
genealogist and an authority on the Holliman family, told the author that his
research indicates the connection. He gives Samuel’s birth date as 1707, and
states that he is descended from Christopher Hollyman, about whom there is much
information, who settled in Isle of Wight County, VA, probably before 1650.
Christopher is believed to be the son of Thomas Hollyman, a stockholder in the
Virginia Company of London, who was in James City County by 1611, and patented
land in Martin’s Hundred 24 Aug 1635 (VA Patent Bk. 1, Part 1, p. 276). That
Thomas married the widow of a Thomas Harvey, who Dr. Ho]]lman describes as a
wealthy haberdasher and p]anter who died without issue. The Thomas thought to ﬂ/bl
be the father of Chr1stopher is said to be the son of George Hollyman of N H
London, a shareholder in the Virginia Company. For details about the family of 237
Christopher see George A. Holleman, The Hollyman Family, (Columbus MS., George
A. Holleman, 1953).

The book cited above contains much information about the origin of the
name Holliman, and indicates it probably derived from residents of the village
of Holym in England, thus "Holym-man", later Hollyman, Holeman, Hollowman,

Holliman.

While we know much, we do not know the exact connection between e el S ,,)
Christopher and this Samue] who we first find in Johnston and Dobbs Counties
of North Carolina as early as 1738. It is known that Samuel lived in Craven,
Berkley, Edgecomb, Johnston and Dobbs counties, North Carolina, His last estate
being on both sides of the Little River on the Johnston - Dobbs County Line,
which would now be located in Wayne County.

Samuel Holliman received a Royal land grant 16 Nov. 1738 in Edgecomb Co.
NC of 300 acres on Fishing Creek (NC Grant Book 3 p. 410, NC Archives).

In 1759 Samuel Holiman was ordered to serve as Constable and Overseer of
the highway on the North side of the Nuse River from Little River Bridg to
Greens Path "and that ye sd overseers keep sd bridg in repair" (Weynette Parks
Ha;z, Johg;on County NC Court Minutes 1759 thru 1766, Durham, NC, the author,
1974, p. 3).

Also in 1759 Samuel Hollimon and Thomas Holliman were appointed jurors to
help lay out a road from John Clerks on Mockason Creek to Thomas Hollomons
{(mi11) on LittTle River and then to Great Buffelow to Hunters Foard and then to
John Tervers ford on Nuse River (Ibid., p. 6).
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Jan 1761. A deed from Henry Jernigain to John Hayles was provd. by oath
of Samuel Holliman (Ibid., p. 26). April 1761 Thomas Pierce ordered to serve as
overseer in room of Dixon Pierce & that his company join Samuel Holimans
Company to build a bridge over the little River where ye old Bridge stood.
(Ibid, p. 32). Samuel Holiman ordered to continue as overseer in ye District he
is now in (Ibid., p. 33). July 1761 The Last Will and Testament of Joshua
Wilkinson...proved by oath of Samuel Holliman and John Salter (Ibid, p. 35).

6 Jan 1762 Samuel Holliman wit. will Richard Edwards (Elizabeth E. Ross,
Johnston Co., NC Will Abstracts 1746-1825, Vol. 1 p. 79).

At a Court Session in Johnston Co., NC 3rd Tues. Jan 1762 deed of sale
from Edmond Godwin to Arthur Bailey of 761 ac proved by oath of Sam’1 Holiman.
The following day Samuel Holliman and John Hinent securities bond of L.100 for
James Downing to obtain a license for keeping an Ordinary (tavern).Mathew
Lowrey and Sami. Holliman securities on bond L. 500 Proclin. Money for David
Holiman as guardian to Arper, Lewis, Sarah, Mary, and Eliz. Bryan, minors of
Rob’t Bryan Esq., Decd. (Haun, "Johnston Minutes", p. 44). Samuel Holliman and
David Holliman securities for adm. bond for Richard Pearce as administrator
estate of Martha Solomon Godwin. (Ibid., p. 69). 1767 Saml. Hollyman on Grand
Jury Johnston Co., NC (Ibid p.76).

ALL OF THE FOLLOWING LAND TRANSACTIONS ARE RECORDED IN JOHNSTON CO., NC.

1761 Royal grant #21 to Samuel Holliman 325 Acres on Little River (NC
Grant Book 14 p. 212, NC State Archives, Raleigh).

1761 purchase from Henry Jarnigan 300 acres. (DB A-1, p. 124).

1761 Royal Grant for 355 acres (NC Grant Book TRS-3 p. 348).

1762 purchased 324 acres from Jacob Yelverton (DB Bl p. 252). Proved by

~ oath of Selia(?) Holliman (Haun, "Johnston Minutes" p. 53)

1767 purchased from Jacob Yelverton 10 acres (DB E1, p. 149). Proved by
oath of Chs. Wilkinson (Haun, Johnston Minutes" p. 122).

1769 sale to James Holliman 135 acres for 10 pounds both sides of Little
River adj. Samuel Holliman. (DB TRA-1, p. 178).

1769 Sale to Fredrick Holliman 165 acres (DB TRA-2, p. 36).

1769 listed on Dobbs County tax list with 2 slaves.

1770. There were 4 purchases from Robert Cobb, for 374, 100, 374, and 100
acres. (Deed Books TRS-1 p. 274, 282 and TRS-3 p. 500 and 510) (Note: These are
probably lease and release deeds which results in double documentation, hence
probably relate to only two parcels of 374 and 100 acres. I’ve only seen the
Index).

1775 Samuel purchased from James Holliman 360 acres on both sides of
Little River for 80 pounds (DB H-1, p. 258).

1777 Sale to Seth Holliman 474 ac. (DB H-1, p. 322).

1777 sale to James Lockhart 200 ac. (DB I-1, p. 18).

1777 Sale to Fredrick Holliman 160 acres. (DB I-1, p. 26).

Several of his deeds recorded in Johnston County refer to him as a
resident of Dobbs County. However, one of the deeds to James Holliman "of
Johnston County" describes the land purchased as adjoining the land of Samuel
Holliman. Dr. Charles Holliman states that Samuel did, in fact, live on the
county line, on Little River, and is listed in the 1769 tax list of Dobbs V//
County, and is show as being age 79 on the 1786 census of Dobbs County, NC. The
author has not yet searched for Dobbs or Wayne County documents.

No will has been found, but his estate is listed in the Secretary of

~ State list of Wills and Estates Probated for Dobbs Co., NC 1789. Dr. Charles
Holliman states that he made deeds of gift to his sons prior to his death, and
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also indicates that he had three wives, one of whom was Karen Happeck. No
documentation provided. There is a strong possibility that Samuel had children
other than James who are unknown.(Note: The North Carolina Archives has been
unable to find such a will, or any reference to it in the NC Secretary of State
List of Wills for Dobbs County in 1789).

He married Elizabeth Jones'. Born, circa 1710 (?), in Isle of Wight Co,
VA. Children:

2 i. James Grantson® Holliman.

\
g
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_y i
Somdify Xy Iz
L #le‘//J/W47§',
2. James Grantson® Holliman (Samuel <?><Hollyman, Holeman>, 1)%. Born, 25 AP
May 1750, in Johnston Co., NC. Died, 8 May 1836, in Lancaster Co., SC. Census: fgeﬂé
1784, in Johnston Co., NC. Census: 1810, in Chesterfield Co., SC. Census: 1830,
in Lancaster Co., SC. Occupation: Planter/Soldier.

While we are reasonably certain of his ancestry, we are not certain of
his father’s identity. According to Dr. Charles Holliman of Raleigh, NC,
perhaps the foremost authority on the Holliman family, James was the son of
Samuel who lived on the county line between Johnston and Dobbs (now Wayne)
counties in NC, on both sides of the Little River, some of this land being sold
to James.

Revolutionary War Pension Application of James Holliman, Number S-9590,
states that he enlisted as a soldier in Johnston County, NC, and also lived
there after the war until 1793, then lived in Lancaster Co., SC, one mile from
the North Carolina line in an area once in Anson County, NC. It should be noted
that some of his children said they were born in N. C., and others said S. C.
It is known he owned land on both sides of the border. A deed in 1800 shows he
is of Lancaster Co., SC and a deed for 1803 1ist him living in Mecklinburg Co.,
NC. He may have had land in both states. Some censuses also showed that he
Tlived in adjoining Chesterfield Co., SC.

The following Land transactions, all in Johnston County, NC, are recorded
in the Johnston County North Carolina Deed and Grant Books noted: (Remember:
there were at least four James of the same generation. There is no way to sort
out which one bought what in Johnston Co.).

19 Jan 1769 Ann Hollomon and James Holloman wit. will Joseph Garner with
Charles Wilkerson (Elizabeth E. Ross, Johnston County NC Will Abstracts
1746-1825, Vol. 1, n. pl., n. p., n.d., p. 282).

1769 Samuel Holliman to James Holliman 135 acres for 10 1lbs. stg. both
sides of Little River adj. Samuel Holliman (TRA 1 p. 178). 1772 James Holliman
from Fredrick Holliman 165 acres (H1 p. 55). James also sold 165 acres te John
Kent (H1 p. 54) and to John Cut 135 acres (Hl p. 50). Also in 1772 he witnessed
will of Mary Thomas (WB ? p. 793 per "Johnston Wills" 1).

In 1774 he bought from David Holliman 305 acres (Hl p.171), and in 1775
he sold to Solomon Johnson 250 ac. (Hl p. 285). In 1775 he sold to Samuel
Holliman 360 acres (Hl p. 258) On this transaction his wife ELIZABETH waived
her dower rights.

In 1777 he sold to John Gully 600 acres (Deed Book I-1 p. 16).

On 4 Dec., 1779, North Carolina Land Grant No. 432, for the sum of fifty
shillings per hundred acres, granted James Holliman, 300 acres in Johnston Co.,
NC on the north side of Times Creek (DB M1, p. 432, Johnston Co., NC)

Dec. 26, 1780 he purchased from Jacob White 200 acres on the North side
of Great Buffaloe Swamp. (The deed recites a consideration of 20,000 pounds,
which indicates that the pound wasn’t worth much at that time). (DB HCK p.
275).

In 1781 he sold Edward Moore 200 ac (HCK p. 268). In 1782 there was a
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grant from North Carolina of 550 acres on the S. side of Buffalo Swamp (Grant
Book M-1, p. 79). In 1782 he sold to Edward Moore 200 acres (Grant Book I, p.
270), and sold Samuel Collins 200 ac. (TRS2, p. 63). In 1785 he sold 300 acres
to Josiah Taylor (DB 0-1, p. 345). In 1786 he sold Josiah Taylor 300 acres
(TRS-9, p. 291). In 1788 he sold Josiah Taylor 300 acres (TRS-3. p. 114). Also
see Johnson Co. NC Deed Book 1762-1765 pp 44-91 which has additional
transactions.

The 1784 Census of NC, Johnston County, p. 78 lists James Holliman with 1
male over 16, 4 males under 16 (Willis, Thomas, Samuel, James, Jr.) and 4
assorted females (his wife, Esther, Elizabeth, and Sarah). A 1790 census record
has not been found.

The following land transactions were recorded in Lancaster County, South
Carolina in Deed Books as noted:

11 Dec. 1797 Robert Welsh of Lancaster Co., to James Holliman of same,
for #40 Sterling...land in the fork of Polecat Creek and part of Lynches Creek,
(bought by Welsh from General Thomas Sumter 8 Dec 1796) 1000 A...Robt. Welsh
(X) (LS), wit: John Welsh, Nicholas Welsh. Prov. by John Welsh, J. P. (Deed
Book € and E, pp 105-6).

20 Dec. 1797, James Holliman of Lancaster Co., to Fredk. Kern of same for
30 silver dollars, land on head branches of Wild Cat Creek, on branch of
Lynches Creek, part of 15,000 acres granted to Thomas Sumter 2 Apr. 1787, adj.
Jacob Shafner, John Bibbey, Rush, Dan’1 Hunter, 60 a...James Holliman (S), Wit:
Thos. Pulley, John Welsh, proved by John Welsh, J. P. (DB B p. 325).

19 Jan. 1798, James Holliman to Jacob Funderburk, L.40 Sterling, 600 ac.
tract, fork Wildcat Creek, part of 15,000 A. granted to Thomas Sumer (Sumter),
Peter Gonrys line, Mud Hole Spring Branch, Read Leek, David Usher’s from Robert
Welods (?) - Jacob Counselors line, John Bibbes, Jacob Carnes, Titus Laney,
David Usher, Robert Welsh...James Holliman (LS). Wit: Arch’d McCorkle, Henry
Funderburk. Prov. by Henry Funderburk, 19 May 1798, before J. Welsh, J. P. (DB
D, p. 172-3).

28 Apr 1798, James Holliman of Lancaster Co., to Nathaniel Bibbe, for 8
Lbs. Stertling, tract on both sides of fork of Wild Cat Creek, part of 15,000 A
granted to Gen. Sumter 2 Apr. 1787. Bibbs own corner..Jacob Funderburks
corner. .Funderburks line..Jacob Shaffner..Bibbs own land. 100 acres. James
Holliman (Seal), Wit: Bennet Highfield, Robert Chappel (X). Prov. by Bennet
Highfield before Jno. Welsh, J. P. 19 May 1798 (DB D, p. 164-5).

14 Jan 1799 James Holliman of Lancaster County., to Leonard Rush of same,
for $20....60 A, part of 15,000 A granted to Thomas Sumter, 2 Apr. 1787.
Between Rusks own line, Martin Smith, Jacob Rusk, John Malomas, James
Holliman...James Holliman (Seal) Wit: Abraham Rush (X), Jacob Rush. Prov. by
Abraham Rush, 23 Feb 1799, before R. Hunley, J. P. (DB C&E, p.110-1).

An 1800 census of this individual has not been found. There is an 1800
Rowan Co., NC census, p. 451 which shows James Holeman with 2 males under 10, 1
male 10-16, 1 male 26-45, 2 females under 10, 1 female 10-16, 1 female 26-45
and 2 slaves. This may not belong to our James, as his Rev. War pension
application made no mention of 1living in Rowan, and according to his Pension
Application, James moved to SC in 1793.

25 Dec. 1800 James Holliman of Lancaster Co., for $6. to Drury Vinson of
same, a certain remnant of land on SW side Pole Cat Creek adj. Vinson and
Daniel Hunley(?), 6 acres..25 Dec 1800. Wit: Abel Funderburk, Henry Funderburk.
James Holliman (Seal) Proved by Abel funderburk, 8 July 1809 before John
Crowder, J. P. (DB G, p. 241).
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4 Oct. 1802, Henry Roan and James Holliman to Koonrod Plylar of Lancaster
Co., for $300...tract on south side Great Linches Creek, 105 acres. Henry Roan
(HR) (Seal) James Holliman (Seal) Wit: Michael Oatts, John Meados. Proved by
John Meadors, 7 April 1809. (DB G, p. 219).

Jacob Rush of Lancaster Dist., planter, was seized of 235 acres on both
sides Flat Creek adj. John Gates, Frizzle, John Belk, John Masters, n. by
vacant land, and sd. Rush was indebted to James Holliman for $57., and suit was
brought by Holliman; Thomas H. Wade, Sheriff sells for $51 to John Stogner...21
May 1803.. in settlement of a claim in Common Pleas Court. Thomas H. Wade
L.L.D. Wit: Sam’1 Gasson, Jonathan Blackman (X). (DB F p. 234).

James Holleman Senr. of North Carolina & McLingburg (Mecklinburg) Co.,
for $40. to James Holleman Junr., land in Lancaster Co., in the upper corner of
Genl. Sumter’s survey, granted 2 Apr. 1786 adj Jacob Plyler, Koonrod Plyler,
Henry Shoots, Paul Plyler, John Mausom, 30 Sept. 1803. James Holliman (Seal),
Wit: Joshua Walters, Susannah Waters(?) (X). Proved by Joshua Walters 31 Dec.
1803, before John Crowder, J.P. (DB F, p. 173-4).

4 Oct. 1802 Rec. 7 Apr. 1809 Henry Roan and James Holliman to Konrad
Pyler, south side of Great Lynches Creek 105 and 15 acres. (DB G p. 219
Lancaster Co., SC)

John Voyles of Anson Co., N. C., exr. of the L. W. & T. of James Holliman
Jr. decd., agreeable to sd will, I was directed to sell tract in Lancaster Co.,
SC, part of 15,000 acres granted to Genl. Sumter, 2 April 1787, 200
acres...sold to Aaron Arant for $39. adj. Martin Smith, 15 June 1804. Wit.
James Holliman Sr. John Voyles (Seal) William Reaves (X). Proved by James
Holliman Sr. 27 April 1805 (DB G, p. 20).

2 Mar 1807 surveyed and granted 7 Mar 1807 James Holliman received a SC
State Land Grant for 109 acres in Chesterfield Co., S. C. on Buffalo Creek, a
br. of Lynches Creek bd E by State Line, SW by Wm Reaves NW by Plyler (SC State
Land Grants v. 53 p. 384. SC Archives, Columbia*)

The 1810 Federal Census of Chesterfield Co. SC, p. 290 has James Holliman
with 3 males under 10, 2 males 10-16, 1 male 16-26, 1 male over 45, one female
under 10, 2 females 10-16, 1 female 26-45. The female under age 10 has not been
identified, and the ages of the boys do not match the presumed birthdates of
all of his sons.

The 1820 census of Chesterfield Co., SC, p. 290 lists James Holliman,
over 45, wife age 26-45, 1 male 16-25, 2 males 10-16, 3 males 0-10, 2 females
10-16, 1 female 0-10. Harmon and Kindred Holliman Tive in Darlington Co.
Cornelius, who may be a brother, is located in Lancaster Co., just across the
Lynches River. (In his pension application, James had stated that he lived only
in Lancaster County, but he is shown in 1810 and 1820 in Chesterfield Co., and
1830 in Lancaster).

1830 Census Lancaster Co., SC, p. 101, James Holloman 2 males 10-15, 1
male 20-30, 1 male 70-80, 1 female 5-10, 1 female 10-15, 1 female 40-50.

REVOLUTIONARY WAR PENSION APPLICATION # S. 9590 OF JAMES HOLLIMAN Dated
Oct., 2, 1833, Anson County, North Carolina:

Personally appeared before me, James Gordon, one of the acting Justices
of the Peace for the county of Anson, James Holliman, a soldier of the
Revolution, he being very infirm and not able with convenience to travel to a
court of record and being aged 83 years, who first being duly sworn according
to law doth on his oath make the following declaration in order to obtain the
benefit of the act of Congress passed June 7, 1832.








